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FEDERAL GRANTOR Federal
Pass Through Grantor CFDA
Program Title Number Receipts Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Fruit and Vegetable Program
Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 30,657$             30,657$

Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program
      School Breakfast Program (Non-Cash Assistance) 10.553 33,000               33,000
      School Breakfast Program 10.553 1,580,144          1,580,144
          Total CFDA #10.553 1,613,144          1,613,144
National School Lunch Program
      National School Lunch Program ( Non-Cash Assistance) 10.555 131,999             131,999
      National School Lunch Program 10.555 6,312,498          6,312,498
          Total CFDA #10.555 6,444,497          6,444,497
     Total Child Nutrition Cluster 8,057,641          8,057,641

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 8,088,298          8,088,298

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Programs:

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063

LPN Pell Grant FY-11 72,501               72,501
LPN Pell Grant FY-12 564,117             564,117

Total Federal Pell Grant Program 636,618             636,618

Federal Family Education Loan Program: 84.268
Adult Education FY-12 1,099,486          1,099,486
Total U.S. Department of Education - Direct Programs 1,736,104          1,736,104

Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Grants to States 84.027
    Special Education IDEA, Part B FY-11 295,670             543,271

Special Education IDEA, Part B FY12 6,607,421          6,607,426
Total CFDA #84.027 6,903,091          7,150,697

    ARRA Special Education IDEA, Part B FY-11 84.391 166,232             775,716
Total Special Education Grants to States 7,069,323          7,926,413

Special Education Preschool Grants
Preschool Grant FY-12 84.173 173,716             167,189

Total Special Education Cluster 7,243,039          8,093,602

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Race-to-the-Top Incentive Grants
ARRA Race to the Top FY-12 84.395 2,402,090          2,083,849

Title I Cluster: 84.010
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies-FY 11 1,449,005          2,286,530
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies-FY 12 15,883,126        15,368,858

Total CFDA #84.010 17,332,131        17,655,388
ARRA Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies-FY 11 84.389 1,595,669          1,608,280

   Total Title I Cluster 18,927,800        19,263,668
(Continued)
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FEDERAL GRANTOR Federal
Pass Through Grantor CFDA
Program Title Number Receipts Disbursements
Safe and Drug - Free Schools and Communities State Grants 84.186

Safe and Drug Free Schools FY 12 8,167                 12,014

Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196
FY 11 10,163               1,206
FY 12 144,014             141,737

Total Education for Homeless Children and Youth 154,177             142,943

Teacher Incentive Fund 84.374
Ohio Teacher Incentive Fund FY-12 804,267             790,924

ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 84.394
ARRA FY 11 (1,308)

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367
Improving Teacher Quality FY11 421,080             658,231
Improving Teacher Quality FY12 2,024,007          1,721,815

Total Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 2,445,087          2,380,046

English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365
Limited English Grant FY 11 21,597               21,916
Limited English Grant FY 12 52,351               47,580

Total English Language Acquisition Grants 73,948               69,496

Reading First State Grants 84.357
Reading First -Ohio FY10 13,777

ARRA McKinney Vento 84.387
ARRA McKinney Vento FY11 95,878               106,101

Ed Jobs 84.410
Ed Jobs FY 11 7,578,598          7,578,598

School Improvement Competitive 84.388
School Improvement FY 12 4,496,213          4,211,392

Education Technology State Grants 84.318
Technology, Title II-D FY11 5,693
Technology, Title II-D FY12 304,363             235,282

Total Education Technology State Grants 304,363             240,975

Readiness and Emergency Management System 84.687 50,647
Total U.S. Department of Education - Pass Though Programs 44,584,274        44,986,077

Total U.S. Department of Education 46,320,378        46,722,181

Total Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures 54,408,676$     54,810,479$

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS SCHEDULE.
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TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LUCAS COUNTY 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures (the Schedule) reports the 
Toledo City School District’s (the District’s) federal award programs’ receipts and disbursements.  The 
Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B - CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER 

The District commingles cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture with similar State grants.  
When reporting expenditures on this Schedule, the District assumes it expends federal monies first.  

NOTE C - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require the District to contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support 
the Federally-funded programs.  The District has met its matching requirements.  The Schedule does not 
include the expenditure of non-Federal matching funds. 

NOTE D – FOOD DONATION PROGRAM 

The District reports commodities consumed on the Schedule at the fair value.  The District allocated 
donated food commodities to the respective programs that benefitted from the use of those donated food 
commodities. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Toledo City School District 
Lucas County 
420 East Manhattan Blvd. 
Toledo, Ohio 43608-1267 

To the Board of Education: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Toledo City School District, Lucas County, Ohio (the District), as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2013. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government 
Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  Therefore, we cannot assure that 
we have identified all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.   However, as 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs we identified a certain 
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting, that we consider a material weakness and other 
deficiencies we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely 
correct misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and timely corrected.  We consider finding 2012-002 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material weakness.  

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  We consider findings 2012-003 and 2012-004 described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of reasonably assuring whether the District’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance we must report under Government Auditing Standards which are described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-001 and 2012-005.  

We also noted certain matters not requiring inclusion in this report that we reported to the District’s 
management in a separate letter dated March 18, 2013.

The District’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs.  We did not audit the District’s responses and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on them.  

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, the Board of 
Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and others within the District.  We intend 
it for no one other than these specified parties. 

Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 

February 28, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Toledo City School District 
Lucas County 
420 East Manhattan Blvd. 
Toledo, Ohio 43608-1267 

To the Board of Education: 

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Toledo City School District, Lucas County, Ohio (the District), with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could directly and materially affect each of the District’s 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.  The summary of auditor’s results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs identifies the District’s major federal 
programs.  The District’s management is responsible for complying with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each major federal program.  Our responsibility is to opine 
on the District’s compliance based on our audit. 

Our compliance audit followed auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits included in the Comptroller General of the United States’
Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations.  These standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance occurred with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with these requirements and performing other 
procedures we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with 
these requirements. 

As described in findings 2012-007 and 2012-009 through 2012-011 in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs, the District did not comply with requirements regarding allowable 
costs/cost principles, and equipment and real property management applicable to its Child Nutrition 
Cluster, and allowable costs/cost principles, level of effort, and special tests and provisions – highly 
qualified teachers applicable to its Title I Cluster; and allowable costs/cost principles applicable to its 
Special Education Cluster, Improving Teacher Quality, ARRA Race to the Top, and School Improvement 
major federal programs.  Compliance with these requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the District 
to comply with requirements applicable to these programs. 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, Toledo City School 
District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that could directly and 
materially affect each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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Internal Control over Compliance 

The District’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of opining on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we have not 
opined on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, we cannot assure we have 
identified all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, 
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or to timely detect and correct, noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a federal program compliance requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected. 
We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-006 through 2012-011 to be material weaknesses. 

We also noted matters involving federal compliance or internal control over federal compliance not 
requiring inclusion in this report, that we reported to the District’s management in a separate letter dated 
March 18, 2013.   

The District’s responses to the findings we identified are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  We did not audit the District’s responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them.
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Schedule of Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures

We have also audited and issued our unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Toledo City School District 
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 28, 2013. Our audit was performed to form opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.  We have not performed any 
procedures with respect to the audited financial statements subsequent to February 28, 2013.  The 
accompanying schedule of federal awards receipts and expenditures provides additional information 
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
The schedule is management’s responsibility, and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  This schedule was subject to the 
auditing procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In 
our opinion, this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole.  
   
We intend this report solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of 
Education, others within the District, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities.  It is not 
intended for anyone other than these specified parties. 

Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 

March 18, 2013 
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TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LUCAS COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

JUNE 30, 2012 

1.  SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

 (d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified 

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control weaknesses 
reported at the financial statement level 
(GAGAS)? 

Yes

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any significant deficiencies in 
internal control reported at the financial 
statement level (GAGAS)? 

Yes

(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material 
noncompliance at the financial statement level 
(GAGAS)? 

Yes

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control 
weaknesses reported for major federal 
programs? 

Yes

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies in 
internal control reported for major federal 
programs? 

No 

(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified – CFDA # 84.410 Ed 
Jobs.

Qualified – all other major 
programs 

(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under 
§ .510(a)? 

Yes

(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): CFDA # 10.553, 10.555 Child 
Nutrition Cluster, CFDA # 
84.027, 84.391, 84.173 Special 
Education Cluster, CFDA # 
84.010, 84.389 Title I, CFDA # 
84.410 Ed Jobs, CFDA # 84.367 
Improving Teacher Quality, 
CFDA # 84.395 Race to the Top, 
CFDA # 84.388 School 
Improvement 

(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $ 1,682,730 
Type B: all others

(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No 
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2.  FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 2012-001 

Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 

Noncompliance Citation 

Ohio Revised Code, 5705.41(B), provides that no subdivision or tax authority is to expend money unless 
it has been appropriated. 

The District's expenditures exceeded appropriations for the Adult Education Fund by $724,922, the 
Miscellaneous Federal Grant Fund by $119,085, Public School Preschool Fund by $44,341, the Data 
Communication Fund by $54,852, the Vocational Education Enhancement Fund by $1,707, the 
Alternative Schools Fund by $25,301, and the Drug Free Schools Grants Fund by $7,100. Failure to 
properly monitor and compare appropriations and actual expenditures could lead to over spending and 
cause a deficit in the fund balance. 

We recommend the District implement procedures to facilitate comparisons of budgeted expenditures to 
actual expenditures within in the accounting system and also implement procedures to assure compliance 
with budgetary laws.

Officials’ Response: 

Per the request of the Auditor of State to complete the Final Budget prior to year end rather than in the 
following year, as was the practice in previously audited years, the district had to project expenses to the 
end of the year.  Errors were made while making those projections which resulted in under appropriated 
funds.  In addition the District will research, within the financial software system, the pre-encumbrance 
and encumbrance features to ensure that Requisitions and Purchase Orders exceeding approved 
appropriations will not be approved.

FINDING NUMBER 2012-002 

Budgetary Financial Statements 

Material Weakness 

Sound financial reporting is the responsibility of the District’s management.  We have identified the 
following exceptions when testing the Budgetary Financial Statements: 

 Taxes and Other estimated receipts reported on the Certificate of Estimated Resources did not 
agree with the Budgetary Financial Statements for the following major funds and amounts: 

Fund Difference between original 
budgeted receipts and 
Budgetary Financial 
Statements 

Difference between final 
budgeted receipts and 
Budgetary Financial 
Statements 

Debt Service   $(1,849,557)                 $0 
Locally Funded 
Initiative

  47,466,057  47,610,028 

Classroom 
Facilities

  52,007,307 104,042,123 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-002 
(Continued) 

 Appropriations from the Board approved Appropriations Resolutions did not agree with 
the Classroom Facilities Budgetary Financial Statement Final Budget in the amount of $73,983,500 
due to a board approved appropriation amendment on March 27, 2012 not being posted to the 
accounting system.  

These conditions provide for inaccurate presentation of the Budgetary Financial Statement, lack of 
appropriate approvals for budgets and amendments to the budget, and inability of management to 
appropriately monitor the budget.  The Budgetary Financial Statements have been adjusted to correct 
these errors. 

To improve these conditions we recommend the following: 

 The Amended Certificate of Estimated Resources or any amendments thereto, reflecting Board 
approved unencumbered balances and current year estimated receipts should be the source 
document for what is input into the accounting system and subsequently reported in the Budgetary 
Financial Statements; 

 The Board approved Appropriations Resolution or any amendments thereto should be the source 
document for what is input into the accounting system and subsequently reported in the Budgetary 
Financial Statements; and  

 Board approval of any of the aforementioned budgetary documents should be clearly expressed in 
a manner to be able to associate the Board approval or resolution with the document. 

Officials’ Response: 

The Certificate of Estimated Resources is now linked to the appropriation measures approved by the 
Board, which ensure that the Certificate is in compliance as well as an accurate presentation of the 
Budgetary Statement. 

FINDING NUMBER 2012-003 

Capital Assets 

Significant Deficiency 

According to the District's policy: 

 The District conducts a complete inventory every five years, by physical count, of all District-owned 
equipment and supplies; 

 Each building and additions to buildings are identified by location or name and are described in 
detail (e.g., size, number of floors, square footage, type of construction, etc.) with the value shown 
for all individual structures; 

 Fixed equipment is inventoried by building, floor and room name or number; each item is to be 
listed individually; 

 Movable equipment is inventoried by building, floor and room name or number; each item is to be 
listed individually;  
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-003 
(Continued) 

 Any item that has a model number or serial number has that number noted in the description for full 
identification; 

 All equipment purchased, after the initial inventory, as capital outlay or replacement with a cost of 
$5,000 or more and with an estimated useful life of five years or more is tagged and made part of 
the equipment inventory.  

We have identified the following: 

 The District does not use Capital Asset software to maintain and update additions, deletions, and 
depreciation. Capital Assets are currently maintained and updated by the use of spreadsheets;  

 The assets reported on the spreadsheets do not always have an assigned asset tag number, and 
do not always have an adequate description to enable location and observation of the asset, and 
the equipment assets in school buildings are not always tagged and not always traceable to the 
capital asset spreadsheets;  

 Disposal forms are nonexistent and supporting documentation for the deletion of assets from the 
asset spreadsheets were incomplete, and buildings that have been razed still have values reported 
on asset spreadsheets. 

These conditions provide for possible incomplete and inaccurate reporting of capital assets in the financial 
statements, possible inadequate insurance coverage, and a lack of control and accountability over the 
District's capital assets.  

To correct the above conditions we recommend the District:  

 Obtain and implement capital asset software;  

 Review the fixed asset policy and consider revisions and inclusion of policy regarding the disposal 
of assets, transfer of assets, and depreciation;  

 Complete asset tagging and provide adequate descriptions of assets; and 

 Complete disposal forms for the disposal of assets with adequate documentation to support the 
disposal, and eliminate or transfer asset values reported in buildings that have been razed. 

Officials’ Response:

Formatting and implementation of fixed assets is underway in financial reporting software.  The 
integration of fixed asset tracking into the financial software will facilitate compliance with Board policies, 
and increased accuracy with fixed asset tracking and reporting for both internal and external sources. 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-004 

Program Change Procedures 

Significant Deficiency 

Effective program change practices include the use of a standard form to document authorization of 
requests for programming changes.  Changes should be tested in a test library and documentation should 
be kept with the change request form.  Programmers should not have access to the production 
environment and a verification process should be in place to ensure the changes made are the changes 
moved into production.  

Without proper change control procedures, changes made to application software could cause revenues 
and expenditures to be misstated on the financial statements. Without these controls there is an 
increased risk these changes could go undetected.  

A standard request form should be implemented. It should include at a minimum: 

 User requesting the change.  

 Supervisor approval.  

 Description of the change requested. 

 Description of the changes made.  

 Programmer who made the change.  

 Test documentation.  

 User approval of the changes made.  

 Document and verify the change made is the change that is moved into production. 

In addition, the District should maintain strict control over interim production program libraries.  Changes 
to programs should be performed and tested within a test environment.  Once a modified program has 
been approved for implementation, a person independent of the programming staff should transfer the 
program into interim production.

The District has implemented program change procedures.  These procedures were implemented July 1, 
2012 and were not in place during the audit period. 

Officials’ Response: 

Computer Services will review procedures to document program changes. Continuing to implement new 
software will help to increase this control. 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-005 

Payroll Contracts 

Noncompliance Citation

Article VII. of the Toledo Association of Administrative Personnel Contract, Article VI. of the Toledo 
Federation of Teachers Contract, and Article IX. of the Toledo Federation of Teachers Contract require 
District employees to be issued a contract.  An employee must have a contract to show the correct rate of 
pay approved by the District's board and to show valid employees.   

Signed contracts were not returned and obtained by the District for all employees who are part of the 
above noted union contract. 

Absence of a signed contract hinders the ability to determine the individual is a valid employee of the 
District.  Failure to maintain employee contracts could result in the improper salary rate being paid to 
employees. 

We recommend the District issue and collect contracts for all employees to ensure that the employees are 
being paid the approved rate of pay.  We also recommend a copy of the valid employee contract be 
maintained in the employee personnel file. 

Officials’ Response:

A collaborative effort between the Human Resource and Payroll Departments will be made to increase 
the rate of compliance with regard to signed contracts. 

3.  FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS  

Child Nutrition/School Improvement Non-Payroll Disbursements

Finding Number 2012-006 

CFDA Title and Number Child Nutrition Cluster – CFDA # 10.553/10.555 and School 
Improvement CFDA # 84.388 

Federal Award Number / Year 2012 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Agriculture/ U.S. Department of 
Education 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Material Weakness 

Child Nutrition Federal Program and School Improvement requirements indicate that an expenditure must 
be both an allowable activity as defined by the grant and an allowable cost as defined by 2 CFR, Part 
225. 

The District has not established formal policies and procedures to ensure each expenditure, based upon 
the vendor invoice, meets allowable activity and cost requirements of the Child Nutrition and School 
Improvement grants. As a result, most of the expenditures tested (73 percent) for the Child Nutrition 
Cluster were not approved by the Director of Food Service as to allowable activity.  Also, as a result, 12 
percent of expenditures tested for the School Improvement Grant tested were not approved by the 
Director of School Improvement.   In addition, there was no evidence that any of the transactions selected 
for testing were reviewed and approved as to allowable cost. 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-005 
(Continued) 

Failure to ensure proper controls exist over allowable activities and allowable cost could result in the 
District expending monies that do not comply with grant requirements which could result in reductions in 
future funding. 

We recommend the District establish written policies that identify who is responsible for reviewing Child 
Nutrition and School Improvement program disbursements for allowable activities and costs and how this 
review is to be documented.  This review should be performed after an invoice is received from a vendor, 
but prior to payment. 

Officials’ Response: 

Toledo Public Schools will implement controls and procedures with the Director of Food Service over child 
nutrition and other programs to ensure expenses allocated are allowable. 

Federal Equipment Listing 

Finding Number 2012-007 

CFDA Title and Number Child Nutrition Cluster – CFDA # 10.553/10.555 

Federal Award Number / Year 2012 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Noncompliance Citation/Material Weakness 

Part 7 CFR 3015.160 through .175 provides that: 

 Title to equipment acquired by a non-Federal entity with Federal awards vests with the non-Federal 
entity. (7 CFR 3015.62)  

 Equipment should be used in the program which acquired it or, when appropriate, other Federal 
programs. (7 CFR 3015.166)  

 Equipment records shall be maintained, a physical inventory of equipment shall be taken at least 
once every two years and reconciled to the equipment records, an appropriate control system shall 
be used to safeguard equipment, and equipment shall be adequately maintained.  (7 CFR 
3015.169)  

 When equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $1,000 (the A-102 Common 
Rule amount is $5,000) is no longer needed for a Federal program, it may be retained or sold with 
the Federal agency having a right to a proportionate (percent of Federal participation in the cost of 
the original project) amount of the current fair market value. (7 CFR 3015.168)  

 Proper sales procedures shall be used that provide for competition to the extent practicable and 
result in the highest possible return. (7 CFR 3015.169) 

The District did not maintain the required federal equipment listing.  Control systems to safeguard 
equipment have not been established, and disposal procedures have not been established. 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-007 
(Continued) 

These conditions provide for possible misappropriations of assets purchased with federal funding, and the 
possibility of jeopardizing future federal funding.  

To correct the above conditions, we recommend the District: 

 Maintain records for equipment purchased with Federal funds, which should include the following 
information:

 A description of the equipment 

 Manufacturer’s serial number, model number, Federal stock number, national stock number, or 
other identification number 

 Source of the equipment, including the award number 

 Whether the title vests in the recipient or the Federal Government 

 Acquisition date (or date received, if the equipment was furnished by the Federal Government) 
and cost 

 Information from which one can calculate the percentage of federal participation in the cost of 
the equipment (not applicable to equipment furnished by the Federal Government) 

 Location and condition of the equipment and the date the information was reported 

 Unit acquisition cost compensates the Federal awarding agency for its share 

 Perform physical inventory at least once every two years and reconcile the inventory count to 
equipment records. 

 Establish an appropriate control system to safeguard equipment. 

 Implement disposal procedures to ensure compliance with federal regulations. Disposition data 
should include date of disposal and sales price or the method used to determine current fair market 
value where a recipient compensates the Federal awarding agency for its share.

Officials’ Response: 

Physical inventory was performed in May 2012.  Formatting and implementation of fixed assets is 
underway in financial reporting software.  The integration of fixed asset tracking into the financial software 
will facilitate compliance with Board policies, and increased accuracy with fixed asset tracking and 
reporting for both internal and external sources. 
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Child Nutrition Program Income 

Finding Number 2012-008 

CFDA Title and Number Child Nutrition Cluster – CFDA # 10.553/10.555 

Federal Award Number / Year 2012 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Material Weakness 

The District collects money from students for breakfast meals, lunch meals, and ala cart items. Students 
may pay daily for meals, may pay in advance for multiple meals, or may charge all or part of a meal to be 
paid in the future. 

The District has not implemented any controls over program income to ensure that the correct rates are 
charged to students related to the food service program.  For 76 percent of transactions tested, the 
District did not maintain written support to identify what products were sold and the amount collected for 
each item.  As such, it was impossible to determine that students were charged the correct rate in 
accordance with the pricing list. 

Failure to document products sold and receipts collected could result in theft of District assets or charging 
students incorrectly for products.

We recommend the District establish policies and procedures to ensure all receipts collected are 
supported as to products sold and amounts collected.

Officials’ Response: 

Toledo Public Schools is developing and will implement a system to accurately record student food 
purchases.

Federal Payroll Disbursements 

Finding Number 2012-009 

CFDA Title and Number Various

Federal Award Number / Year 2012 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Education 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Questioned Cost/Noncompliance/Material Weakness 

2CFR, Part 225 requires employees who work on multiple activities or cost objectives, to support the 
distribution of their salaries or wages with personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation which 
meets the standards unless a statistical sampling system or other substitute system has been approved 
by the cognizant Federal agency. Employees whose compensation is allocated solely to a single cost 
objective must furnish semiannual certificates that he/she has been engaged solely in activities supportive 
of the cost objectives.  
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-009 
(Continued) 

The District charged Federal grant programs for payroll and benefits expenditures that were either 
unsupported by personnel activity reports required or did not match activities documented on personnel 
activity reports provided. 

The following conditions exist over the Districts documentation of personnel activity; 

 Employees working on multiple activities or cost objectives did not always complete time and effort 
forms (i.e. monthly personnel activity reports) or semi-annual certifications indicating that 
the employee has worked on a single cost objective throughout the semi-annual period; 

 Personnel activity as documented by employees on time and effort forms o r  semi-annual 
certifications did not always  match amounts charged to grants; 

 One of the semi-annual certifications tested was not signed by the employee or the employee's 
supervisor (appropriate personnel that is familiar with first-hand knowledge supporting that wages 
paid meets allowable activity and cost permitted by the grant). 

Based on non-compliance identified above, we are questioning the following grant expenditures:

Program CFDA Amount 

Child Nutrition 10.553/10.555 $           50,807 

Title 1 84.010              14,893 

Title 1 School 
Improvement ARRA FY 
11 

84.389              22,688 

Race to the Top 84.395A              16,862 

Title VI-B Special 
Education IDEA, Part B 
FY 12 

84.027                2,050 

School Improvement 
Competitive 

84.388                9,484 

Improving Teacher 
Quality FY 12 

84.367               1,813 

Ohio Teacher Incentive 
Fund 

84.375                5,600 

Total  $          124,197 

Failure  to  establish  and  monitor  controls  over  personnel  activity  reports could  result  in  the  District 
inappropriately charging federal grants for work not performed.  This could result in reduced grant funding 
in the future. 

We recommend the District perform the following procedures: 

 Review federal guidelines that identify requirements for documenting personnel activity; 

 Establish and implement procedures to ensure Federal payroll expenditures are supported as 
required by 2 CFR, Part 225; 
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-009 
(Continued) 

 Establish procedures to monitor the completion and accuracy of personnel activity 
documentation to ensure each charge to a Federal Grant is properly supported, and consider who 
the appropriate personnel to sign the form should be. The personnel who signs the form attesting 
to accuracy should have first-hand knowledge supporting that wages paid meets allowable activity 
and costs permitted by the grant; 

 The District should reconcile, not less than quarterly, amounts budgeted for each employee to a 
federal grant to actual time spent on the federal grant.  Any differences should be posted to the 
accounting system. 

Officials’ Response: 

Toledo Public Schools has reviewed Circular A-87 and has implemented a new time and effort procedure 
as of second semester FY12 based on the FY11 audit findings. We will continue to review the process 
and work with other departments to ensure the validity of the time and effort forms.

Title I Highly Qualified Teachers 

Finding Number 2012-010 

CFDA Title and Number Title I – CFDA # 84.010/84.389 

Federal Award Number / Year 2012 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Education 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Questioned Cost/Noncompliance/Material Weakness 

34 CFR Section 200.56 requires that an LEA has to ensure that any teacher whom it hired to teach a core 
academic subject and who worked in a program supported with Title I, Part A funds was highly qualified. 
This requirement applied to teachers in Title I targeted assistance programs who taught a core academic 
subject and were paid with Title I, Part A funds and to all teachers who taught a core academic subject in 
a Title I schoolwide program school.  “Core academic subjects” means English, reading or language arts, 
mathematics, science, foreign languages, civics and government, economics, arts, history, and 
geography.  

The District requires teachers to submit Highly Qualified Teacher Status forms that identify the criteria the 
teacher has met to be considered Highly Qualified. Upon receipt of the Highly Qualified Teacher Status 
form, the District date stamps the form and updates a spreadsheet with the related highly qualified 
teacher information. The Human Resources technician that updates the spreadsheet initials the data that 
was updated. 

The District charged Federal grant programs for payroll and benefits expenditures that were either 
unsupported by Highly Qualified Teacher Status forms, or supporting documentation which evidences that 
the submitted form was complete and accurate. 

The following conditions exist over the District’s documentation of Highly Qualified Teacher Status; 

 Forms were not always complete identifying that the teacher meets Highly Qualified Teacher 
criteria;
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-010 
(Continued) 

 Upon receipt of Highly Qualified Teacher Status forms, the forms were not always date stamped for 
receipt;  

 The spreadsheet maintained by the District to monitor Highly Qualified Teacher status was not 
initialed for updating;  

 Supporting Documentation was not maintained evidencing that the teacher met the Highly Qualified 
Teacher criteria. 

Based on non-compliance identified above, we are questioning the following grant expenditures: 

Program CFDA Amount 

TITLE I - FY-12 84.010 $           350,009 

TITLE I - TARGETED 
ASSISTANCE FY-11 

84.010                79,833 

Total $            429,842 

Failure  to  establish  and  monitor  controls  over  Highly Qualified Teacher status 
could  result  in  the  District inappropriately charging federal grants for teachers who are not 
qualified. This could result in reduced grant funding in the future. 

We recommend the District perform the following procedures:  

 The District should implement procedures to assure the timely return of Highly Qualified Teacher 
Status forms and supporting documentation that evidences the Highly Qualified criteria has been 
met;

 District personnel should date stamp Highly Qualified Teacher Status forms upon receipt;  

 District personnel should update the Highly Qualified status spreadsheet and initial as such 
indicating accuracy and completeness of the Highly Qualified Teacher Status form and 
completeness of supporting documentation that evidences the Highly Qualified Teacher criteria has 
been met;  

 There should be supervisory review to monitor that procedures are being performed as intended 
should occur occasionally throughout the year. 

Officials’ Response: 

Toledo Public Schools will re-instate process to track information related to Highly Qualified Teachers, 
and ensure the supporting paperwork is collected.
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Level of Effort – School Attendance 

Finding Number 2012-011 

CFDA Title and Number Title I – CFDA # 84.010/84.389 

Federal Award Number / Year 2011 

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Education 

Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Education 

Noncompliance/Material Weakness 

Title I, Sections 1116(a) and (b)(1), (7), and (8) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) 
(20 USC 6316(a) and (b)(1), (7), and (8)) and 34 CFR sections 200.30 through 200.34 require school 
districts to annually review the progress of each school served under Title I, Part A to determine whether 
the school has made adequate yearly progress (AYP).  Every school and district must meet AYP goals 
that the ODE Accountability Model (approved by USDOE) has established for reading and mathematics 
proficiency and test participation, attendance rate and graduation rate.  AYP determinations for districts 
and schools are based on test participation and proficiency rate goals. These goals are evaluated for the 
student groups when the minimum subgroup size has been met.  AYP graduation and attendance goals 
are evaluated for the “All Students” group only.  Failure to meet any of the proficiency or participation 
goals, attendance levels or graduation targets results in the district or school not meeting AYP.  This is 
commonly referred to as a maintenance of effort requirement. 

Title I, Sections 1111(h)(2) and 1116(a)(1)(C) of ESEA (20 USC 6311(h)(2) and 6316(a)(1)(C)) and 34 
CFR sections 200.36 through 200.38 also require each school district that receives Title I, Part A funds 
prepare and disseminate to all schools in the district—and to all parents of students attending those 
schools—an annual district-wide report card that, among other things, includes the number, names, and 
percentage of schools identified for school improvement and how long the schools have been so 
identified.

Under the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) model, a school’s report card specifies its performance as 
compared to other schools in Ohio. Specifically, the NCLB school report card displays student 
achievement data in reading, mathematics, science and other core subjects required by the state so that 
parents and the public can see how their schools are progressing over time. In addition, the report card 
includes information on student attendance rates and graduation rates. 

A school’s performance on the report card can be affected by the students counted in the scoring. If the 
scores of low performing students can be excluded from a particular school’s report card, the overall 
performance of that school shows a corresponding improvement.   

Under NCLB, there are several allowable ways student test scores can be excluded from an individual 
school’s report card and pushed to the school district wide or state report card as described in ODE’s 
“Where Kids Count” (WKC) Methodology.  Breaks in enrollment result in student test scores being pushed 
to the statewide composite report card. In this scenario, the local report card includes only students 
enrolled for the FAY. A student must be enrolled continuously at a single school from the end of October 
count week to May 10th for grades 3 8 or March 19th for all other grades to qualify for the full academic 
year of attendance. When a lawful break in enrollment occurs, school districts push the student’s test 
scores to the State’s report card. Schools break enrollment by withdrawing or enrolling students between 
October count week and the end of the academic school year.  
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-011 
(Continued) 

The concept of due process prior to withdrawal of truant students is further emphasized by the NLCB Act 
and IDEA. The NCLB Act requires every Title I eligible child be served under the program. Withdrawing 
students prior to receiving due process inaccurately inflates the school’s AYP report card rating, which 
results in an understatement of Title I allocations to the eligible buildings within a school district. 

The process of creating breaks in enrollment entails admitting or withdrawing students after the official 
October Average Daily Membership (ADM) count week. Valid reasons to create a “break” in enrollment 
are established pursuant to Chapter 2 of the 2011 ODE EMIS Manual.  One of the more common reasons 
is the student withdrew due to truancy/nonattendance.   

Ohio Rev. Code Section 3321.19 defines truancy and empowers Ohio school governing boards to adopt 
their own policies for intervention and withdrawal of students. If a parent, guardian, or other custodian of a 
habitual truant fails to cause the child’s attendance at school, the board of education may proceed with an 
intervention strategy in accordance with its adopted policy, may initiate delinquency proceedings, or 
both. Each board is required under Ohio Rev. Code Section 3321.191 to adopt a policy to guide 
employees in addressing and ameliorating the habitual truancy of students. 

With regard to truancy, schools are permitted to withdraw students only after appropriate due process. 
The statutes provide several procedural steps which schools must follow in dealing with violations of the 
compulsory attendance laws.  

We obtained the ODE Education Management Information System (EMIS) information on student 
attendance and reviewed breaks in enrollment during fiscal year 2011 which cause student test scores to 
be pushed to the statewide composite report card.  

The Auditor of State (AOS) reviewed a total of nine schools in Toledo City School District, completing 
testing procedures over a total of 884 students rolled up to the State report card for the 2011 fiscal year 
and the results are as follows: 

470 students were withdrawn due to truancy/nonattendance under code 71 without proper due 
process, including parental notification and court adjudication. 

417 students did not appear to meet the 5/20 rule. 

143 other exceptions were related to lack of appropriate support for the noted attendance event, 
including 78 students for which no files could be provided by the district. 

Of the 616 total exceptions noted, 488 were related to students who had scores below 400 on at 
least one section of the statewide Ohio Achievement Assessments or Ohio Graduation Tests.

We also noted that Toledo City School District (CSD) explained its practice of removing students with five 
consecutive days of unexcused absences and a total of 20 unexcused absences throughout the school 
year. Toledo CSD has been using the “5/20” rule for withdrawing students since 2001. However, until 
2005, Toledo CSD actively removed these students throughout the school year. In 2005, Toledo CSD lost 
several high-level administrators to Cleveland Municipal City School District. Toledo CSD subsequently 
hired new administrators and in 2006 the local report card ratings fell since the “5/20” rule for withdrawing 
students was no longer in place. After realizing lower report card rankings, Toledo CSD administrators 
decided to reinstitute the “5/20” rule for withdrawing students in the following school year. However, 
instead of withdrawing students throughout the school year, Toledo CSD waited until after they received 
the first report from the Secure Data Center from ODE during the reporting period projecting the District’s 
report card rankings. Toledo CSD informed the AOS that they removed all students that met the 5/20 
criteria, regardless of assessment test score results for the affected students.  
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FINDING NUMBER 2012-011 
(Continued) 

We recommend the District establish formal procedures requiring completion and maintenance of 
enrollment forms, withdrawal forms, and appropriate documentation supporting attendance events.  The 
procedures should include training of its administrators on the procedures to be performed as well as 
follow up reviews by management to ensure the procedures are being followed.  The District should also 
file a complaint in juvenile court if the child is an unruly child for being an habitual truant or is a delinquent 
child for being an habitual truant who previously has been adjudicated an unruly child for being an 
habitual truant and that the parent, guardian, or other person having care of the child has violated section 
3321.38 of the Revised Code. 

Officials’ Response: 

The activities leading to this finding were stopped in June 2012.
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Finding  
Number 

Planned Corrective 
Action

Anticipated 
Completion 

Date 

Responsible 
Contact Person 

2012-006 Toledo Public Schools will establish and maintain  
equipment records for Child Nutrition program 

6/30/2013 R. Debroas/ 
J. Gant 

2012-007 Toledo Public Schools will implement a system to 
accurately record student food purchases. A POS 
system has been implemented in some facilities. 

Continuous R. Debroas/ 
J. Gant 

2012-008 Toledo Public Schools has reviewed Circular A-87 
and has implemented a new time and effort 
procedure as of second semester FY12 based on 
the FY11 audit findings. We will continue to 
review the process and work with other 
departments to ensure the validity of the time and 
effort forms. 

6/30/2013 M. Cleland 

2012-009 Toledo Public Schools will re-instate the process 
to track information related to Highly Qualified 
Teachers, and ensure the supporting paperwork 
is collected. 

6/30/2013 C. Spieldenner 

2012-010 A collaborative effort between the Human 
Resource and Payroll Departments will be made 
to increase the rate of compliance with regard to 
signed contracts. 

6/30/2013 S. Shasteen/ C. 
Spieldenner

2012-011 The activities leading to this finding were stopped 
in June 2012. 

6/30/2013 J. Pecko/J. Gault 
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OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .315 (b) 

 JUNE 30, 2012 

Finding 
Number 

Finding 
Summary 

Fully
Corrected? 

Not Corrected, Partially 
Corrected; Significantly 
Different Corrective Action 
Taken; or Finding No Longer 
Valid; Explain

2011-001 District did not obtain 
proper Certification 

Yes

2011-002 Severance Overpayment Yes  

2011-003 Signed payroll Contracts 
did not exist for all 
employees 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
005 

2011-004 Non-payroll 
Disbursements not 
properly approved 

Yes

2011-005 Grants Receivable were 
not properly reported on 
the financial statements 

Yes

2011-006 Budgetary Financial 
Statements were not 
properly completed 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
002 

2011-007 District did not follow 
Capital Assets Policy 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
003 

2011-008 Program Change 
Procedures not 
implements 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
004 

2011-009 District did not properly 
record accrued wages 
and compensated 
absences  

Yes

2011-010 Federal Payroll 
Disbursements not 
supported by 2 CFR, Part 
225 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
009 

2011-011 District did not maintain a 
federal equipment listing 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
007 

2011-012 District not in compliance 
with Teacher Incentive 
Fund Cash Management 

Yes

2011-013 District not in compliance 
with Title I Suspension 
and Debarment 

Yes
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2011-014 District not in compliance 
with Title I Final 
Expenditure Report 

Yes

2011-015 District not in compliance 
with Child Nutrition 
Eligibility

Yes

2011-016 District not in compliance 
with Federal Program 
Payroll Disbursements 

No  Re-issued as Finding 2012-
009 

2011-017 District not in compliance 
with Child Nutrition Non-
Payroll Disbursements 

No  Re-issued as Finding 2012-
006 

2011-017 District not in compliance 
with Child Nutrition 
Program Income 

No Re-issued as Finding 2012-
008 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 

Toledo City School District 
Lucas County 
420 East Manhattan Blvd. 
Toledo, Ohio 43608-1267 

To the Board of Education: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Toledo City School District, Lucas County, Ohio (the 
District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the District’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based 
on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the 
United States’ Government Auditing Standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.   

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of Toledo City School District, Lucas County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows, thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 28, 
2013, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters.  While we did not opine on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, that 
report describes the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards.  You should read it in conjunction with this report in assessing the 
results of our audit. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to 
include Management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any other assurance.  

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District’s basic 
financial statements taken as a whole.  The introductory section, the financial section’s combining 
statements, individual fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section information provides 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The financial section’s 
combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and 
were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements.   These statements and schedules were subject to the auditing procedures we 
applied to the basic financial statements.  We also applied certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, this information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did 
not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other 
assurance on them. 

Dave Yost  
Auditor of State 

February 28, 2013 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Key financial highlights for 2012 are as follows: 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements
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The Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Statements 

Governmental Activities

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental Funds
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets -

Debt -
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ECONOMIC FACTORS 

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management  
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Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2012 

Governmental 
Activities

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Activities  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Governmental Activities:

Totals

General Revenues
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Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to 
Net Assets of Governmental Activities  
June 30, 2012 

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because

Net Assets of Governmental Activities
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
To the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance – Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) 
General Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Expenditures:
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Other Financing Sources (Uses):
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Statement of Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2012 

Assets:
Current Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Operating Revenues:

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Total Operating Expenses

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
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Statement of Cash Flows
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Statement of Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Fiduciary Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Additions:

Deductions:
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity 

 “The Financial Reporting Entity,”

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

Fiduciary Funds – 

C. Basis of Presentation – Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

C. Basis of Presentation – Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

D. Basis of Accounting
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

D. Basis of Accounting

Revenues – Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions – 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

E. Budgetary Process
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

E. Budgetary Process
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

E. Budgetary Process

F. Cash and Investments 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

F. Cash and Investments
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

G. Inventory 

H. Capital Assets and Depreciation 

I. Long-Term Obligations
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

J. Compensated Absences and Salary Related Payments

K. Net Assets

L. Fund Balance

Nonspendable
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L. Fund Balance 

Restricted – 

Committed - 

Assigned - 

Unassigned - 

M. Pensions

N. Intergovernmental Revenues 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

O. Interfund Activity 

P. Estimates

Q. Operating Revenues and Expenses 

R. Extraordinary and Special Items 
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NOTE 2 – FUND BALANCES
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NOTE 3 – RECONCILITATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

A. Explanation Of Certain Differences Between The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
And The Government-Wide Statement Of Net Assets 

Other long-term assets not available to pay for current-period expenditures:

Long-Term liabilities not reported in the funds:
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NOTE 3 – RECONCILITATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

B. Explanation Of Certain Differences Between The Governmental Fund Statement Of 
Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes In Fund Balances And The Government-Wide 
Statement Of  Activities 

Amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Governmental revenues not reported in the funds:

Net amount of long-term debt issuance and bond and lease principal payments:

Expenses not requiring the use of current financial resources:
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NOTE 4 - COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Fund Deficits 

B. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 

NOTE 5 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits with Financial Institutions 
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NOTE 5 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Investments 

Interest Rate Risk 
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NOTE 5 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Investment Policy 

Credit Risk 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
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NOTE 5 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

not
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NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES



TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

DRAFT 2/27/2013

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES 

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

NOTE 9 - TRANSFERS
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NOTE 10 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Governmental Activities Capital Assets 

Historical Cost:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Accumulated Depreciation:

Net Value:
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NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A.  School Employee Retirement System

B.  State Teachers Retirement System



TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

DRAFT 2/27/2013

NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

B. State Teachers Retirement System
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

A. School Employee Retirement System 

B.  State Teachers Retirement System
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

B. State Teachers Retirement System

NOTE 13 - NOTES PAYABLE 
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NOTE 14 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Governmental Activities:
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NOTE 14 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Principal and Interest Requirements 

B. Refunded General Obligation Debt

NOTE 15 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

NOTE 16 - ENDOWMENTS 
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT
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NOTE 18 – STATUTORY RESERVES

NOTE 19 – SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS
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NOTE 20 - CONTINGENCIES

A. Grants 

B. Litigation 

C.  Full Time Equivalency 

NOTE 21 – SUBSEQUENT EVENT



TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

DRAFT 2/27/2013

COMBINING  AND  INDIVIDUAL  FUND

STATEMENTS  AND SCHEDULES

THE FOLLOWING COMBINING STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES INCLUDE 
THE MAJOR AND NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, INTERNAL 
SERVICE FUNDS  AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Food Service Fund 

Uniform School Supplies Fund 

Vocational Rotary Fund 

Adult Education Fund 

School Building Support Fund 

Other Grants Fund 

School Facilities Maintenance Fund 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Administratively Managed Student Activity Fund 

Auxiliary Services Program Fund 

Management Information System Fund 

Public School Preschool Fund 

Data Communication Fund 

Vocational Education Enhancement Fund 

Alternative Schools Fund 

Miscellaneous State Fund 

Education Jobs Fund 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Race to the Top Fund 

Special Education Handicapped Fund 

Vocational Education Fund 

Title VII Bilingual Education Program Fund 

Title I Fund 

Drug Free Schools Grant Fund 

Preschool Grants for the Handicapped Fund 

Improving Teacher Quality Fund 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Miscellaneous Federal Grants Fund 

Educational Research and Development Fund 

Title I School Improvement Stimulus A Fund 

Title I School Improvement Stimulus G Fund 

Capital Projects Fund 

Permanent Improvement Fund 

Permanent Fund 

Endowments Fund 
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Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances End of Year
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Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2012 

Assets:

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Revenues:

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year
Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year



TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

DRAFT 2/27/2013



TOLEDO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
Fund Balance – Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Major Funds – General Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

DRAFT 2/27/2013

GENERAL FUND
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DEBT SERVICE FUND
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LOCALLY FUNDED INITIATIVE FUND
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CLASSROOM FACILITIES FUND
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FOOD SERVICE FUND
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UNIFORM SCHOOL SUPPLIES FUND
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VOCATIONAL ROTARY FUND
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ADULT EDUCATION FUND
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SCHOOL BUILDING SUPPORT FUND
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OTHER GRANTS FUND
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ADMINSTRATIVELY MANAGED STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND
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AUXILIARY SERVICES FUND
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM FUND
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PUBLIC SCHOOL PRESCHOOL FUND
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Toledo Public School District

Net Assets by Component
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $47,320,939 $46,451,090 $44,598,478 $48,695,909
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 8,027,026 602,514,840 583,303,915 513,286,796
Debt Service 6,902,023 7,914,287 5,845,920 8,823,771
Permanent Funds:

Expendable 345,762 328,848 313,819 328,736
Nonexpendable 502,291 502,291 502,291 502,291

Other Purposes 0 12,150,959 10,644,859 17,127,362
Unrestricted (Deficit) (39,092,774) (37,951,094) (35,477,065) (27,004,696)
Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $24,005,267 $631,911,221 $609,732,217 $561,760,169

Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $47,320,939 $46,451,090 $44,598,478 $48,695,909
Restricted 15,777,102 623,411,225 600,610,804 540,068,956
Unrestricted (Deficit) (39,092,774) (37,951,094) (35,477,065) (27,004,696)
Total Primary Government Net Assets $24,005,267 $631,911,221 $609,732,217 $561,760,169

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$248,239,325 $273,164,202 $319,887,466 $295,429,243 $356,044,033 $391,566,146

361,944,025 317,693,258 169,137,197 217,877,292 135,580,227 95,015,152
12,115,936 14,372,972 11,705,745 5,725,901 6,055,588 5,413,569

341,333 350,204 343,688 330,522 309,119 293,603
502,291 503,291 503,291 503,291 503,291 503,291

17,864,571 18,876,850 39,034,091 18,185,213 15,138,459 23,724,299
(15,174,793) (19,858,790) (56,323,121) (39,755,783) (4,891,597) 4,190,775

$625,832,688 $605,101,987 $484,288,357 $498,295,679 $508,739,120 $520,706,835

$248,239,325 $273,164,202 $319,887,466 $295,429,243 $356,044,033 $391,566,146
392,768,156 351,796,575 220,724,012 242,622,219 157,586,684 124,949,914
(15,174,793) (19,858,790) (56,323,121) (39,755,783) (4,891,597) 4,190,775

$625,832,688 $605,101,987 $484,288,357 $498,295,679 $508,739,120 $520,706,835
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Toledo Public School District

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006
Expenses

Governmental Activities
Instruction $222,417,618 $248,417,336 $270,471,446 $292,680,197
Support Services 141,129,502 134,366,560 135,099,356 138,761,857
Non-Instructional Services 25,122,326 25,815,679 27,827,829 19,816,003
Extracurricular Activities 5,360,012 5,362,388 5,262,095 6,333,665
Interest and Fiscal Charges 45,506 5,148,505 7,162,151 7,229,719

Total Primary Government Expenses $394,074,964 $419,110,468 $445,822,877 $464,821,441

Program Revenues
Charges for Services

Instruction $2,694,477 $5,213,123 $6,691,740 $3,461,903
Support Services 6,118,524 6,121,179 5,891,099 9,122,667
Extracurricular Activities 1,737,914 1,488,661 4,722,931 3,515,022

Operating Grants and Contributions 62,289,833 69,932,639 63,212,833 72,027,628
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,658,608 5,746,926 1,403,910 577,516
Total Primary 

Government Program Revenues 75,499,356 88,502,528 81,922,513 88,704,736

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities (318,575,608) (330,607,940) (363,900,364) (376,116,705)

Total Primary 
Government Net (Expense)/Revenue ($318,575,608) ($330,607,940) ($363,900,364) ($376,116,705)
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$189,552,656 $263,193,272 $261,800,004 $247,655,446 $260,842,406 $236,207,897
133,079,110 133,764,377 135,291,670 132,178,983 121,820,020 114,249,054

27,648,071 25,644,073 26,726,017 23,329,071 25,822,082 16,957,213
4,242,542 5,107,505 5,471,234 5,397,381 3,563,783 2,387,172
6,991,726 6,919,481 6,958,983 8,249,037 6,327,517 6,815,825

$361,514,105 $434,628,708 $436,247,908 $416,809,918 $418,375,808 $376,617,161

$6,053,787 $5,290,951 $4,023,645 $2,818,840 $2,738,592 $2,153,120
13,630,186 13,775,626 16,187,742 11,539,081 10,155,473 8,424,558

3,042,679 2,777,125 2,731,369 2,467,675 1,973,018 1,457,008
89,840,113 95,387,363 102,234,262 71,728,806 74,429,919 46,905,184

241,467 0 0 0 0 13,271,422

112,808,232 117,231,065 125,177,018 88,554,402 89,297,002 72,211,292

(248,705,873) (317,397,643) (311,070,890) (328,255,516) (329,078,806) (304,405,869)

($248,705,873) ($317,397,643) ($311,070,890) ($328,255,516) ($329,078,806) ($304,405,869)
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Toledo Public School District

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006

General Revenues and 
Other Changes in Net Assets 
Governmental Activities

Property Taxes Levied for
   General Purposes $103,915,412 $107,245,398 $106,736,207 $104,775,512

Special Purposes 631,432 1,152,249 1,258,083 1,196,205
Debt Service 5,764,724 10,924,204 11,700,649 11,621,405
Capital Outlay 4,364,880 4,244,528 4,460,168 4,380,783

Grants and Entitlements not
    Restricted to Specific Programs 192,462,913 202,381,204 210,387,487 197,630,604

Investment Earnings 2,273,113 2,088,128 5,983,334 8,437,563
Miscellaneous 329,592 638,024 1,195,432 102,585

Total Primary Government $309,742,066 $328,673,735 $341,721,360 $328,144,657

Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities ($8,833,542) ($1,934,205) ($22,179,004) ($47,972,048)

Total Primary 
Government Change in Net Assets ($8,833,542) ($1,934,205) ($22,179,004) ($47,972,048)

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$99,468,836 $89,303,614 $93,183,415 $91,408,483 $95,606,344 $74,414,156
1,196,598 1,099,423 1,151,977 1,062,637 1,002,932 1,026,037

12,429,284 11,056,591 11,305,429 8,089,438 9,129,011 9,098,250
4,410,854 3,984,819 4,034,149 5,586,245 1,432,954 0

183,776,457 181,133,225 193,207,018 233,261,864 232,087,828 231,488,421
11,334,119 9,683,086 4,587,198 2,590,626 (398,979) 336,955

162,244 406,184 102,225 263,545 662,157 9,765

$312,778,392 $296,666,942 $307,571,411 $342,262,838 $339,522,247 $316,373,584

$64,072,519 ($20,730,701) ($3,499,479) $14,007,322 $10,443,441 $11,967,715

$64,072,519 ($20,730,701) ($3,499,479) $14,007,322 $10,443,441 $11,967,715
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Toledo Public School District

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006
General Fund

Nonspendable $0 $0 $0 $0
Unassigned 0 0 0 0
Reserved 17,895,690 14,681,804 16,147,477 8,391,654
Unreserved (20,506,000) (24,015,732) (28,005,685) (20,963,268)

Total General Fund (2,610,310) (9,333,928) (11,858,208) (12,571,614)

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable 0 0 0 0
Restricted 0 0 0 0
Unassigned 0 0 0 0
Reserved 22,401,780 24,704,088 61,721,921 11,261,152
Unreserved, Undesignated in:

Special Revenue Funds (2,482,855) (3,246,820) (1,804,134) (1,438,040)
Debt Service Fund 0 7,145,076 4,438,435 7,129,305
Capital Projects Funds 67,880,801 147,612,524 88,974,476 77,119,622
Permanent Fund      345,762 328,848 313,819 328,736

Total All Other Governmental Funds 88,145,488 176,543,716 153,644,517 94,400,775

Total Governmental Funds $85,535,178 $167,209,788 $141,786,309 $81,829,161

Source: District Treasurer's Office

Note:  The District implemented GASB 54 in 2011 which established new fund balance classifications
           for governmental funds.
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$0 $0 $0 $0 $62,902 $65,468
0 0 0 0 (10,868,218) (1,229,421)

13,272,327 13,719,985 13,008,918 12,554,700 0 0
(7,561,390) 1,776 (17,195,736) (25,259,943) 0 0

5,710,937 13,721,761 (4,186,818) (12,705,243) (10,805,316) (1,163,953)

0 0 0 0 503,291 503,291
0 0 0 0 121,037,616 86,806,823
0 0 0 0 (3,538,516) (849,304)

58,835,147 69,496,216 38,678,072 79,947,256 0 0

3,671,750 (1,834,973) 7,135,876 10,188,787 0 0
10,450,742 13,863,182 10,920,852 4,797,338 0 0
51,056,444 9,668,289 67,224,903 70,492,241 0 0

341,333 350,204 341,588 326,522 0 0

124,355,416 91,542,918 124,301,291 165,752,144 118,002,391 86,460,810

$130,066,353 $105,264,679 $120,114,473 $153,046,901 $107,197,075 $85,296,857
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Toledo Public School District

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006
Revenues:

Taxes $111,319,491 $116,690,772 $119,358,742 $118,721,351
Tuition 2,680,188 5,197,293 3,266,058 3,447,124
Transportation Fees 440,793 469,959 502,116 561,991
Food Services 2,438,348 2,355,774 2,061,867 1,975,570
Investment Earnings 2,049,381 2,078,065 5,955,187 8,344,735
Extracurricular Activities 1,577,542 1,546,319 1,592,106 1,519,804
Class Materials and Fees 454,013 400,782 412,727 378,202
Intermediate Sources 52,690 35,239 20,932 0
Intergovernmental - State 218,580,096 243,734,658 282,962,791 298,841,914
Intergovernmental - Federal 34,184,344 44,480,898 48,193,022 42,192,049
All Other Revenue 3,340,754 3,479,842 10,673,605 8,309,077

Total Revenue 377,117,640 420,469,601 474,999,153 484,291,817

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction 218,665,625 224,080,604 229,062,862 224,652,834
Supporting Services 139,042,662 136,780,343 144,862,597 142,938,752
Non-Instructional Services 26,550,266 27,486,263 27,795,462 23,196,032
Extracurricular Activities 5,237,784 5,149,254 5,166,323 6,326,677

Capital Outlay 9,126,013 37,290,845 77,944,609 136,541,555
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 93,000 8,393,000 8,293,000 3,240,506
Interest and Fiscal Charges 419,324 5,769,497 7,297,779 7,357,013
Total Expenditures 399,134,674 444,949,806 500,422,632 544,253,369

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (22,017,034) (24,480,205) (25,423,479) (59,961,552)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 4,404
Payments to Refunding Bonds Escrow Agent 0 0 0 0
General Obligation Bonds Issued 72,500,000 103,600,000 0 0
Premium on Issuance 

of General Obligation Bonds 1,627,778 2,554,815 0 0
New Capital Leases 1,953,851 0 0 0
Transfers In 4,694,436 3,684,025 3,186,555 3,556,661
Transfers Out (4,694,436) (3,684,025) (3,186,555) (3,556,661)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 76,081,629 106,154,815 0 4,404
Net Change in Fund Balance $54,064,595 $81,674,610 ($25,423,479) ($59,957,148)

Debt Service as a Percentage 
of Noncapital Expenditures 0.13% 3.28% 3.38% 2.24%

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$120,520,408 $114,312,225 $105,699,938 $101,918,154 $96,848,838 $92,962,714
3,708,191 4,130,667 2,889,694 1,882,544 1,996,903 2,139,162

783,273 764,427 809,245 789,969 512,767 380,291
1,869,705 1,791,657 1,664,852 1,402,139 1,053,241 753,334

11,340,272 9,779,617 4,916,848 2,458,103 (359,695) 343,334
1,298,006 1,236,132 1,096,809 1,114,890 875,047 487,122

390,068 331,134 309,764 328,486 120,999 58,356
30,000 60,000 20,000 0 0 10,200

325,177,344 295,700,158 295,597,310 288,513,123 274,473,871 245,334,613
50,008,540 38,934,570 54,073,343 80,117,268 73,165,870 58,919,333
14,795,783 13,948,465 16,274,444 11,481,474 10,238,626 8,262,528

529,921,590 480,989,052 483,352,247 490,006,150 458,926,467 409,650,987

223,368,191 226,968,624 252,993,864 251,020,566 237,995,598 221,413,444
132,585,876 141,432,307 143,794,427 138,912,335 126,115,598 116,235,381
26,451,093 24,870,693 23,917,955 25,184,615 31,025,845 29,646,355
4,064,556 4,871,994 5,282,257 5,289,492 3,467,440 2,282,608

84,731,327 97,176,358 64,251,427 20,583,735 96,128,614 50,477,831

3,265,000 3,330,000 3,415,000 7,835,000 4,260,000 4,395,000
7,119,129 7,047,876 7,229,513 8,361,259 6,446,406 7,568,120

481,585,172 505,697,852 500,884,443 457,187,002 505,439,501 432,018,739

48,336,418 (24,708,800) (17,532,196) 32,819,148 (46,513,034) (22,367,752)

30,142 46,765 0 113,280 663,208 0
0 0 0 0 0 (59,595,899)
0 0 31,999,995 0 0 52,555,000

0 0 381,995 0 0 7,508,433
0 0 0 0 0 0

11,650,611 7,277,303 10,417,146 8,429,486 3,575,875 1,282,460
(11,779,979) (7,416,942) (10,417,146) (8,429,486) (3,575,875) (1,282,460)

(99,226) (92,874) 32,381,990 113,280 663,208 467,534
$48,237,192 ($24,801,674) $14,849,794 $32,932,428 ($45,849,826) ($21,900,218)

2.94% 2.45% 2.51% 3.90% 2.56% 3.12%
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Toledo Public School District

Assessed Valuations and Estimated True Values of Taxable Property
(amounts in thousands)

Last Ten Calendar Years

Tax year 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Real Property
Assessed 2,305,922 2,314,937 2,658,992 2,693,299 2,675,627
Actual 6,588,349 6,614,106 7,597,120 7,695,140 7,644,649

Public Utility
Assessed 166,114 177,375 152,422 144,678 136,918
Actual 166,114 177,375 152,422 144,678 136,918

Tangible Personal Property
Assessed 373,954 345,046 322,160 295,642 281,399
Actual 1,495,816 1,380,184 1,288,640 1,182,568 1,125,596

Total
Assessed 2,845,990 2,837,358 3,133,574 3,133,619 3,093,944
Actual 8,250,279 8,171,665 9,038,182 9,022,386 8,907,163

Assessed Value as a 
Percentage of Actual Value 34.50% 34.72% 34.67% 34.73% 34.74%

Total Direct Tax Rate $63.00 $68.00 $67.60 $67.35 $67.35

Source:  Lucas County Auditor

Presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner 
in which the information is maintained by the County.

Assessed value of Real Property is at 35%, Assessed value of Public Utility is at 100%
and Assessed Value of Tangible Personal Property is at 25% through 2005, 
at 18.75% for 2006, 12.5% for 2007, and 6.25% for 2008 and 0% for 2009 and 2010.
Additionally, telephone and telecommunications property was reclassified 
to general business personal property and assessed at 10% for 2009 and 2010.
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

3,025,038 2,980,687 2,973,109 2,667,357 2,573,582
8,642,966 8,516,249 8,494,597 7,621,020 7,353,091

137,134 138,071 97,072 107,158 114,195
137,134 138,071 97,072 107,158 114,195

210,923 153,551 15,315 7,407 0
1,687,384 2,456,816 153,150 74,070 0

3,373,095 3,272,309 3,085,496 2,781,922 2,687,777
10,467,484 11,111,136 8,744,819 7,802,248 7,467,286

32.22% 29.45% 35.28% 35.66% 35.99%

$67.10 $66.90 $67.70 $65.70 $65.70
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Toledo Public School District

Property Tax Rates of Direct and Overlapping Governments
(per $1,000 of assessed value)

Last Ten Calendar Years

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Direct District Rates
General Fund 60.50 60.50 60.30 60.05 60.05
Permanent Improvement Fund 2.50 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Bond Retirement Fund 0.00 4.50 4.30 4.30 4.30
Total 63.00 68.00 67.60 67.35 67.35

Overlapping Rates
Townships:

Harding 4.30 3.60 3.30 3.00 3.00
Spencer 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00

Municipalities:
City of Toledo 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
Village of Ottawa Hills 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
Lucas County 17.45 17.45 18.30 18.00 18.00

Total 99.25 103.55 103.70 102.85 102.85

Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.02 and 5705.07 require a vote of the people for any millage exceeding the 
"unvoted" or "inside" millage.

Source:
Lucas County Auditor's Office
Lucas County Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

59.80 59.80 60.60 61.20 61.20
3.00 3.00 3.00 0.50 0.50
4.30 4.10 4.10 4.00 4.00

67.10 66.90 67.70 65.70 65.70

3.00 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80
6.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00

4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10

18.00 18.17 18.17 16.17 16.17

102.60 106.37 107.17 103.17 103.17
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Toledo Public School District

Principal Taxpayers
Real Estate Tax

 (amounts in thousands)
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percent
of Total

Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Value Rank Value

One Seagate Partners LLC Realty $12,950 1 0.48%
St. Vincent Medical Center Hospital 12,788 2 0.48%
Toledo Hospital/Promedica Hospital 7,795 3 0.29%
Empirian Realty 7,772 4 0.29%
Centro NP Miracle Mile LLC Realty 6,959 5 0.26%
ERT Southland Realty 5,791 6 0.22%
University Residences at Westwood Realty 5,558 7 0.21%
Airport Square Investment Realty 5,321 8 0.20%
Toledo Office Investment Realty 3,850 9 0.14%
Toledo Edison Electric Distribution 3,831 10 0.14%

Subtotal 72,615 2.71%
All Others 2,615,162 97.29%

Total $2,687,777 100.00%

Percent
of Total

Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Value Rank Value

Toledo Edison Electric Distribution $66,603 1 2.89%
Ohio Bell Telecommunications 43,083 2 1.87%
Owens-Illinois Manufacturing 19,335 3 0.84%
Columbia Gas Utility 15,306 4 0.66%
S-S-C Company Realty 9,770 5 0.42%
St. Vincent Medical Center Hospital 8,038 6 0.35%
A.E.R.C. Realty 7,712 7 0.33%
Toledo Hospital Hospital 6,921 8 0.30%
Medical College of Ohio Hospital 6,413 9 0.28%
Dana Corp. Automotive 5,512 10 0.24%

Subtotal 188,693 8.18%
All Others 2,117,229 91.82%

Total $2,305,922 100.00%

Source:  Lucas County Auditor - Land and Buildings
             Based on valuation of property in 2011 and 2002

Presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner 
in which the information is maintained by the County.

Calendar Year 2002

Calendar Year 2011
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Toledo Public School District

Principal Taxpayers
Public Utilities Tangible Personal Property Tax

 (amounts in thousands)
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percent
of Total

Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Value Rank Value

Toledo Edison Electrical Distribution $78,477 1 68.72%
Columbia Gas Utility 20,892 2 18.30%
American Transmisison, Inc. Utility 11,063 3 9.69%

Subtotal 110,432 96.71%
All Others 3,763 3.29%

Total $114,195 100.00%

Percent
of Total

Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Value Rank Value

Toledo Edison Electrical Distribution $60,861 1 37.02%
Ohio Bell Utility 40,457 2 24.61%
Columbia Gas Utility 14,900 3 9.06%

Subtotal 116,218 70.69%
All Others 48,167 29.31%

Total $164,385 100.00%

Source:  Lucas County Auditor - Land and Buildings
             Based on valuation of property in 2011 and 2002

Presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner 
in which the information is maintained by the County.

Calendar Year 2002

Calendar Year 2011
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Toledo Public School District

Property Tax Levies and Collections
(amounts in thousands)

Last Ten Years

Collection Year 2002 2003 2004 2005

Total Tax Levy  (1) $119,636 $129,385 $127,874 $126,939

Collections within the Fiscal Year of the Levy

Current Tax Collections  (2) 115,839 122,349 125,522 124,222

Percent of Levy Collected 96.83% 94.56% 98.16% 97.86%

Delinquent Tax Collections  (3) 5,598 6,778 6,563 6,183

Total Tax Collections 121,437 129,127 132,085 130,405

Percent of Total Tax Collections To Tax Levy 101.51% 99.80% 103.29% 102.73%

Accumulated Outstanding Delinquent Taxes  (4) 15,570 16,946 19,187 21,979

Percentage of Accumulated 

Delinquent Taxes to Total Tax Levy 13.01% 13.10% 15.00% 17.31%

(1)   Taxes levied and collected are presented on a cash basis.

(2)   State reimbursements of rollback and homestead exemptions are included;

(3)  The County does not identify delinquent tax collections by tax year.

(4)   Penalties and interest are included, since by Ohio law they become part of
        the tax obligation as assessment occurs.

Source:  Lucas County Auditor's Office
Presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner 
in which the information is maintained by the County.
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Toledo Public School District

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$120,463 $121,796 $125,132 $117,731 $113,750 $113,232

117,366 116,283 117,843 99,431 98,171 95,804

97.43% 95.47% 94.17% 84.46% 86.30% 84.61%

7,589 11,023 8,449 8,215 9,032 8,510

124,955 127,306 126,292 107,646 107,203 104,314

103.73% 104.52% 100.93% 91.43% 94.24% 92.12%

24,532 14,411 21,234 20,721 21,545 27,716

20.36% 11.83% 16.97% 17.60% 18.94% 24.48%
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Toledo Public School District

Ratio of Outstanding Debt By Type
Last Ten Years 

2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental Activities  (1)

EPA Long-Term Note Payable $226,506 $133,506 $40,506 $0
General Obligation Bonds Payable 74,127,778 171,679,762 163,339,963 160,000,164
Capital Leases 2,040,666 828,655 421,765 221,896

Total Primary Government $76,394,950 $172,641,923 $163,802,234 $160,222,060

Population  (2)

City of Toledo 313,619 313,619 313,619 313,619
Outstanding Debt Per Capita $244 $550 $522 $511

Income  
Personal  (in thousands) 9,654,447 9,964,616 9,856,732 9,917,574
Percentage of Personal Income 0.79% 1.73% 1.66% 1.62%

Sources: 
(1)  District Treasurer's Office
(2)  US Bureau of Census of Population
   (a)  Per Capita Income is only available by County, Total Personal Income is a calculation

N/A = Not available
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
156,595,365 153,125,566 181,939,114 173,950,672 169,537,230 164,600,535

0 0 0 0 0 0
$156,595,365 $153,125,566 $181,939,114 $173,950,672 $169,537,230 $164,600,535

313,619 313,619 313,619 287,208 286,038 286,208
$499 $488 $580 $606 $593 $575

10,135,852 10,298,307 10,095,709 6,887,535 5,380,089 5,383,286
1.54% 1.49% 1.80% 2.53% 3.15% 3.06%
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Toledo Public School District

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
(amounts in thousands)

Last Ten Years 

Year 2003 2004 2005 2006

Population  (1) 313,619 313,619 313,619 313,619

Assessed Value  (2) $2,837,358 $3,133,574 $3,133,619 $3,093,946

General Bonded Debt  (3)

General Obligation Bonds $74,128 $171,680 $163,340 $160,000

Resources Available to Pay Principal  (4) $6,929 $7,611 $5,070 $7,669

Net General Bonded Debt $67,199 $164,069 $158,270 $152,331

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt
to Assessed Actual Value 2.37% 5.24% 5.05% 4.92%

Net Bonded Debt per Capita $214 $523 $505 $486

Source: 
(1)  U.S. Bureau of Census of Population 
(2)  Lucas County Auditor
(3)  Includes all general obligation bonded debt supported by property taxes
(4)  Includes only Debt Service funds available for general obligation bonded debt supported by property taxes.
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

313,619 313,619 313,619 287,208 286,038 286,208

$3,373,095 $3,272,309 $3,085,496 $2,781,922 $2,687,777 $2,687,777

$156,595 $153,126 $181,939 $173,951 $169,537 $164,600

$11,268 $13,863 $11,526 $5,293 $5,193 $4,314

$145,327 $139,263 $170,413 $168,658 $164,344 $160,286

4.31% 4.26% 5.52% 6.06% 6.11% 5.96%

$463 $444 $543 $587 $575 $560
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Toledo Public School District

Computation of Direct and Overlapping
Debt Attributable to Governmental Activities

(amounts in thousands)
June 30, 2012

Percentage Amount
Applicable to Applicable to

 Gross Debt Toledo Public Toledo Public
Jurisdiction Outstanding School District School District

Direct:
Toledo Public School District $164,600 100.00% $164,600

Overlapping:
Lucas County 123,946 28.58% 35,429
City of Toledo 138,879 71.42% 99,182

Subtotal 134,611

Total $299,211

Source:  Lucas County Auditor

Percentages determined by dividing each overlapping subdivisions' assessed valuation within the City
by the subdivisions' total assessed valuation.
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Toledo Public School District

Debt Limitations
(amounts in thousands)

Last Ten Years

2002 2003 2004 2005

Net Assessed Valuation $2,845,990 $2,837,358 $3,133,574 $3,133,619
Overall Direct Debt Limitation

Legal Debt Limitation (%) (1) 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Legal Debt Limitation ($) (1) 256,139 255,362 282,022 282,026
Applicable District Debt Outstanding 320 145,227 167,934 159,600
Less:  Applicable Debt Service Fund Amounts (2) (96) (6,926) (7,612) (5,070)

Net Indebtedness Subject to Limitation 224 138,301 160,322 154,530
Overall Legal Debt Margin $255,915 $117,061 $121,700 $127,496

Unvoted Direct Debt Limitation
Legal Debt Limitation (%) (1) 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%
Legal Debt Limitation ($) (1) 2,846 2,837 3,134 3,134
Applicable District Debt Outstanding 0 0 0 0
Unvoted Legal Debt Margin $2,846 $2,837 $3,134 $3,134

Energy Conservation Bond Limitation
Legal Debt Limitation (%) (1) 0.90% 0.90% 0.90% 0.90%
Legal Debt Limitation ($) (1) 25,614 25,536 28,202 28,203
Authorized by the Board 0 0 0 0
Unvoted Energy Conservation
     Bond Legal Debt Margin $25,614 $25,536 $28,202 $28,203

(1)  Ohio Bond Law sets a limit of  9% for overall debt, 1/10 of 1% for unvoted debt, 
       and 9/10 of 1% for energy conservation debt.
(2)  Includes only Debt Service funds available for general obligation bonded debt supported by property taxes.
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Toledo Public School District

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$3,093,944 $3,373,095 $3,272,309 $3,085,496 $2,781,922 $2,687,777

9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
278,455 303,579 294,508 277,695 250,373 241,900
156,400 153,135 149,805 178,389 170,555 160,070

(7,669) (11,268) (13,863) (11,526) (5,293) (5,193)
148,731 141,867 135,942 166,863 165,262 154,877

$129,724 $161,712 $158,566 $110,832 $85,111 $87,023

0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%
3,094 3,373 3,272 3,085 2,782 2,688

0 0 0 0 0 0
$3,094 $3,373 $3,272 $3,085 $2,782 $2,688

0.90% 0.90% 0.90% 0.90% 0.90% 0.90%
27,845 30,358 29,451 27,769 25,037 24,190

0 0 0 0 0 0

$27,845 $30,358 $29,451 $27,769 $25,037 $24,190
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Toledo Public School District

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years 

Calendar Year 2002 2003 2004 2005
Population  (1)

City of Toledo 313,619 313,619 313,619 313,619
Lucas County 455,054 455,054 455,054 437,901

Income  (2) (a)

Total Personal  (in thousands) 9,535,272 9,654,447 9,964,616 9,856,732
Per Capita 30,404 30,784 31,773 31,429

Unemployment Rate  (3)

Federal 5.8% 6.0% 5.5% 5.0%
State 5.7% 6.1% 6.0% 5.9%
Lucas County 6.9% 7.8% 7.4% 6.9%

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006
School Enrollment  (4)

Elementary School (K-5 & K-6 configuration) 20,038 19,230 18,275 16,668
Middle School (6-8 & 7-8 configuration) 5,525 5,324 4,886 4,498
High School (9-12) 9,701 9,485 9,452 9,092
Special (5) 340 277 385 38
     Total 35,604 34,316 32,998 30,296

Sources: 
(1)  US Bureau of Census of Population
(2)  US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
   (a)  Per Capita Income is only available by County, 
          Total Personal Income is a calculation
(3)  State Department of Labor Statistics
(4)  District Treasurer's Office
(5)  For FY 2009 Special includes four Magnet Schools (2 K-8 & 2 K-9) and an Alternative Learning School
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Toledo Public School District

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

313,619 313,619 313,619 313,619 287,208 286,038
437,901 437,901 437,901 437,901 441,815 440,005

9,917,574 10,135,852 10,298,307 10,095,709 6,887,535 5,380,089
31,623 32,319 32,837 32,191 23,981 18,809

4.6% 4.6% 5.8% 9.3% 9.6% 8.9%
5.5% 5.6% 6.6% 10.2% 10.1% 8.6%
6.3% 6.7% 8.3% 12.2% 11.3% 9.7%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

13,305 13,100 13,197 13,321 13,748 11,512
6,717 6,297 4,312 3,856 3,249 4,742
8,685 8,269 7,079 6,809 6,680 6,187

352 583 1,204 1,209 642 31
29,059 28,249 25,792 25,195 24,319 22,472
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Toledo Public School District

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage
Number of of Total

Employer Nature of Business Employees Rank Employment

Promedica Medicial Facilities 10,174 1 3.04%
Mercy Health Partners Medicial Facilities 6,185 2 1.85%
University of Toledo Education 6,000 3 1.79%
Lucas County Government 3,700 4 1.10%
Toledo Public Schools Education 3,644 5 1.09%
Toledo City Government 2,676 6 0.80%
Kroger Company Grocery 2,632 7 0.79%
Chrysler Group Manufacturing 2,470 8 0.74%
Sauder Woodworkings Manufacturing 2,320 9 0.69%
State of Ohio Government 2,268 10 0.68%

Total 42,069 12.57%
Total Employment within the District 292,800 87.43%

334,869 100.00%

Percentage
Number of of Total

Employer Nature of Business Employees Rank Employment

Promedica Medicial Facilities 10,000 1 2.77%
Mercy Health Partners Medicial Facilities 8,854 2 2.45%
Toledo Public Schools Education 5,658 3 1.57%
University of Toledo Education 5,000 4 1.38%
Lucas County Government 4,510 5 1.25%
Food Town Grocery 4,300 6 1.19%
Daimler-Chrysler Manufacturing 4,100 7 1.14%
General Motors Manufacturing 4,092 8 1.13%
Sauder Woodworking Manufacturing 3,600 9 1.00%
The Andersons Grain/Retail 3,500 10 0.97%

Total 53,614 14.85%
Total Employment within the District 307,610 85.15%

361,224 100.00%

Sources: 
Source:  Toledo Chamber of Commerce and Ohio Department of Job and Family Services

Fiscal Year 2012

2003
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Toledo Public School District

School District Employees by Type
Last Ten Years

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Supervisory

Instructional Administrators 51 49 44 40 38
Noninstructional Administrators 66 61 71 67 63
Principals 60 61 66 60 56
Assistant Principals 55 55 46 45 42

Instruction
Classroom Teachers

Elementary 1,569 1,456 1,405 1,253 1,188
Middle 395 354 365 340 262
High 674 618 659 638 597
Other 164 152 141 151 156

Student Services
Guidance Counselors 72 71 71 68 64
Psychologists 25 24 26 25 24
Other Professionals (noninstructional) 36 35 36 36 34

Support Services
Clerical/Secretaries 358 347 333 312 297
Tutors/Aides 434 414 370 373 345
Food Service 267 265 253 233 219
Maintenance/Grounds 367 349 354 333 326
Transportation 241 206 205 205 202

Total Employees 4,834 4,517 4,445 4,179 3,913

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

44 45 49 42 29
62 59 68 66 59
51 55 61 52 48
51 39 45 33 33

1,057 1,051 1,249 987 976
299 324 378 321 224
655 540 614 524 484
169 143 175 95 66

67 60 68 63 48
23 28 27 22 25
31 19 38 17 17

311 271 319 235 202
358 324 376 313 310
243 222 253 208 183
346 304 366 299 254
212 194 232 176 168

3,979 3,678 4,318 3,453 3,126
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Toledo Public School District

Operating Indicators - Cost per Pupil
Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Enrollment 35,604 34,316 32,998 30,296 29,059

Modified Accrual Basis
Operating Expenditures 399,134,674 444,949,806 500,422,632 544,253,369 481,585,172
Cost per Pupil 11,210 12,966 15,165 17,965 16,573
Percentage of Change 14.9% 15.7% 17.0% 18.5% (7.75%)

Accrual Basis
Expenses 394,074,964 419,110,468 445,822,877 464,821,441 361,514,105
Cost per Pupil 11,068 12,213 13,511 15,343 12,441
Percentage of Change 6.4% 10.3% 10.6% 13.6% (18.91%)

Teaching Staff 3,099 3,348 3,276 2,368 2,248

Pupil to Teacher Ratio
Toledo 13.5 14.1 18.3 18.6 19.5
State Average 16.9 18.5 18.5 18.5 18.5

Source: District Treasurer's Office and Ohio Department of Education

N/A = Not available

- S 34 -



Toledo Public School District

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

28,249 25,792 25,195 24,319 22,472

505,697,852 500,884,443 457,187,002 505,439,501 432,018,739
17,901 19,420 18,146 20,784 19,225
8.02% 8.48% (6.56%) 14.54% (7.50%)

434,628,708 436,247,908 416,809,918 418,375,808 376,617,161
15,386 16,914 16,543 17,204 16,759

23.67% 9.93% (2.19%) 3.99% (2.58%)

2,201 2,058 2,116 1,927 1,750

18.0 18.0 N/A N/A N/A
18.6 18.6 N/A N/A N/A
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Toledo Public School District

Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Years

2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental Activities

Instruction
Regular 29,757 28,540 27,529 24,953
Special 5,847 5,809 5,456 5,343

Support Services
Pupils

Enrollment 35,604 34,349 32,985 30,296
Graduates 1,079 1,041 1,171 1,348
Percent of Students with Disabilities 15.90% 16.60% 17.40% 18.30%
Percent of Students with English as Second Language 0.60% 0.30% 0.50% 0.30%

Administration
School Attendance Rate 93.30% 93.10% 93.20% 93.20%

Fiscal Services
Purchase Orders Processed 29,352 26,053 25,745 25,218
Checks Issued (non payroll) 30,585 29,349 26,321 26,058

Operation and Maintenance of Plant
District Square Footage Maintained 6,318,863 6,318,863 6,634,127 6,271,055
District Square Acreage Maintained 145 145 152 144

Pupil Transportation
Average Daily Students Transported 8,385 7,756 8,642 9,229
Average Daily Bus Fleet Miles 6,253 11,043 11,598 10,348
Number of Buses 174 178 167 171

Operation of Noninstructional Services
Food Service

Students Meals Served Daily 15,285 14,368 13,523 12,667
Free/Reduced Price Meals Daily 13,186 12,550 11,944 11,181

Extracurricular Activities
High School Varsity Teams 110 114 115 115

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

23,767 22,995 21,020 20,358 19,671 19,034
5,292 5,254 4,771 4,837 4,648 4,140

29,059 28,249 25,792 25,195 24,319 23,174
1,519 1,284 1,267 1,303 1,272 1,075

17.90% 18.60% 18.50% 19.20% 19.10% 18.00%
0.50% 1.80% 1.40% 1.50% 2.26% 1.61%

92.30% 95.20% 94.90% 94.90% 94.70% 94.30%

23,753 23,998 23,998 20,917 19,867 16,759
26,369 26,306 26,825 27,187 15,650 19,312

5,533,138 5,449,806 5,588,049 5,588,049 6,263,196 5,183,088
127 125 128 128 144 144

11,182 10,323 11,114 13,269 2,893 3,517
10,711 10,892 10,392 10,125 8,300 8,190

172 162 166 160 124 120

12,833 14,290 14,643 15,089 14,952 18,652
11,247 12,977 13,400 13,206 13,750 17,428

115 115 115 115 48 48
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Toledo Public School District

Operating Indicators - Teacher Base Salaries
Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Minimum Salary 32,697 32,697 32,697 32,697 32,697

Maximum Salary 65,520 65,520 65,520 65,520 65,520

District Average Salary 45,544 45,949 48,274 49,862 50,294

County Average Salary 46,224 41,964 51,376 53,411 54,696

State Average Salary 45,515 47,495 49,436 50,771 53,534

Source: District Treasurer's Office and Ohio Department of Education

Operating Indicators - Teacher by Education
Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Bachelor's Degree 1,844 1,785 1,635 1,101 1,033

Master's Degree 1,240 1,550 1,624 1,254 1,202

Doctorate 15 13 17 13 13

Total 3,099 3,348 3,276 2,368 2,248

Source: District Treasurer's Office

N/A - not available
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Toledo Public School District

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

32,697 34,351 35,313 34,960 34,086

65,520 68,836 70,763 72,867 71,045

50,083 52,735 54,568 56,585 53,613

56,228 59,210 61,490 NA 41,949

53,410 54,656 55,958 56,715 48,071

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

1,010 933 945 824 759

1,180 1,115 1,161 1,095 980

11 10 10 8 11

2,201 2,058 2,116 1,927 1,750
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Toledo Public School District

Capital Asset Statistics by Building
Last Ten Years

2003 2004 2005 2006
School Buildings

High Schools
Number of Buildings 7 7 7 7
Square Footage 1,977,346 1,977,346 1,977,346 1,977,346
Enrollment 9,701 9,485 9,452 9,092

Junior High Schools   *
Number of Buildings 7 7 7 7
Square Footage 725,903 725,903 725,903 725,903
Enrollment 5,525 5,324 4,886 4,498

Middle Schools   *
Number of Buildings 0 0 0 1
Square Footage 0 0 0 83,299
Enrollment 0 0 0 521

Elementary Schools
Number of Buildings 44 44 44 44
Square Footage 2,581,410 2,581,410 2,581,410 2,376,163
Enrollment 20,038 19,230 18,275 16,668

Special Schools
Number of Buildings 14 14 14 11
Square Footage 823,914 823,914 823,914 582,790
Enrollment 340 277 385 313

All Other
Central Administration Building

Square Footage 79,354 79,354 79,354 79,354
Transportation Building

Square Footage 10,950 10,950 10,950 10,950
Maintenance Building

Square Footage 119,986 119,986 119,986 119,986

Source: District Treasurer's Office

* Restructuring program began in 2006, completed in 2008.
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

7 7 7 7 7 7
1,793,255 1,943,186 1,947,738 1,947,738 1,947,738 1,798,771

8,685 8,272 7,079 6,809 6,680 6,187

6 0 0 0 0 0
634,563 0 0 0 0 0

5,353 0 0 0 0 0

2 7 7 7 7 0
179,743 652,097 622,321 622,321 622,321 0

1,206 4,346 4,312 3,856 3,249 0

37 37 37 37 37 42
2,327,553 2,290,095 2,453,562 2,453,562 2,453,562 2,530,620

15,468 12,860 13,196 13,321 13,748 15,685

8 8 8 8 8 8
372,463 358,143 358,143 358,143 358,143 358,143

359 2,770 1,204 1,209 642 600

79,354 79,354 79,354 79,354 79,354 79,354

10,950 10,950 10,950 10,950 10,950 10,950

115,981 115,981 115,981 115,981 115,981 115,981
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Toledo Public School District

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Years

2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental Activities

Instruction
Land and Improvements $17,186,218 $17,930,709 $21,401,277 $21,237,747
Buildings and Improvements 97,370,855 98,807,735 98,448,522 124,467,992
Machinery and Equipment 767,167 820,189 1,080,631 1,422,417
Vehicles 265,561 265,561 372,411 372,411
Construction In Progress 2,848,748 12,191,262 45,957,833 84,155,459

Administration
Land and Improvements 565,488 565,488 565,488 207,367
Buildings and Improvements 4,228,050 4,228,050 4,228,050 1,028,140
Machinery and Equipment 2,025,156 2,348,835 3,705,058 3,690,836
Vehicles 0 0 0 0

Operations and Maintenance of Plant
Land and Improvements 411,952 411,953 411,953 411,953
Buildings and Improvements 1,502,625 1,502,625 1,502,625 1,502,625
Machinery and Equipment 467,244 1,398,411 1,731,391 2,212,966
Vehicles 1,512,200 1,530,343 1,530,343 1,575,448

Transportation Services
Land and Improvements 584,422 584,422 584,422 584,422
Buildings and Improvements 207,077 207,077 207,077 207,077
Machinery and Equipment 42,700 42,700 42,700 42,700
Vehicles 7,456,491 7,552,128 7,552,128 7,552,128

Non-Instructional Activities
Land and Improvements 127,175 127,175 127,175 127,175
Buildings and Improvements 4,046,820 4,046,820 4,046,820 3,199,962
Machinery and Equipment 1,267,426 1,316,505 1,316,505 1,261,155

Extracurricular Activities
Land and Improvements 0 0 0 140,221
Buildings and Improvements 0 0 0 4,046,768
Machinery and Equipment 0 0 5,204 284,226

Source: District Treasurer's Office
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Toledo Public School District

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$21,206,948 $21,221,762 $20,918,762 $20,918,761 $20,918,761 $21,444,762
180,471,518 303,328,623 392,702,165 452,882,180 480,007,471 590,026,000

1,679,106 2,026,764 2,226,144 2,772,922 2,954,554 3,245,394
372,412 372,412 421,335 421,335 421,335 465,344

151,589,221 96,291,759 75,436,367 41,441,727 94,921,281 10,865,779

207,367 207,367 207,367 207,367 207,367 207,367
4,001,663 8,943,955 16,073,559 9,609,275 10,963,164 10,963,164
3,849,683 4,043,960 4,181,127 4,382,103 4,416,260 4,482,758

0 0 0 28,631 157,931 157,931

411,952 411,952 411,952 411,952 411,952 411,952
1,502,625 1,502,625 1,502,625 1,502,625 1,504,498 1,504,498
2,316,700 2,391,276 2,017,143 2,031,520 2,109,652 2,109,652
1,643,155 1,789,849 1,790,269 1,816,428 1,488,754 1,143,127

584,422 584,422 584,422 584,422 584,422 58,422
207,077 207,077 207,077 207,077 207,077 207,077
42,700 42,700 54,943 54,943 54,943 54,943

7,912,620 8,053,881 8,551,578 8,710,085 8,303,498 8,561,106

127,175 127,175 127,175 127,175 127,175 127,175
4,046,820 4,046,820 4,046,820 4,046,820 4,046,820 4,046,820
1,251,855 1,168,102 1,176,061 1,069,348 981,930 981,930

140,221 140,221 140,221 140,221 140,221 140,221
3,199,910 3,199,910 3,199,910 3,199,910 3,199,910 3,199,910

284,226 284,226 284,226 284,226 284,226 284,226
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Toledo Public School District

Educational and Operating Statistics
Last Ten Years

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Cost per Student (ODE)

Toledo 9,980 10,279 10,604 11,202 11,209
Ohio (Average) 8,441 8,768 9,048 9,356 9,586

Attendance Rate
Toledo 93.30% 93.10% 93.20% 93.20% 92.30%
Ohio (Average) 94.90% 95.30% 95.20% 94.10% 94.10%

Graduation Rate
Toledo 70.40% 70.40% 80.20% 90.40% 87.60%
Ohio (Average) 83.90% 84.30% 85.90% 86.20% 86.90%

Source:  
District's Student Records and Ohio Department of Education

N/A = Not available
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Toledo Public School District

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

10,770 12,008 13,544 13,859 12,471
9,939 10,184 10,512 10,571 10,571

95.20% 94.90% N/A 94.70% 94.30%
94.20% 94.30% 94.30% 94.50% 94.50%

N/A N/A N/A 80.50% N/A
N/A 84.60% 84.60% 84.30% 84.30%
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